
 

 
 

Brawley City Council & 
Successor Agency to Brawley  

Community Redevelopment Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, January 21, 2020 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

383 Main Street 
Brawley, California 92227 

 
Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor                                        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 
Luke Hamby, Mayor Pro-Tempore               William S. Smerdon, City 
Sam Couchman, Council Member                   Attorney/City Treasurer 
George A. Nava, Council Member  Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager/ 
Donald L. Wharton, Council Member                                                  Executive Director 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
INVOCATION  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

1



 

2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS (Not to exceed 4 minutes) this is the 
 time for the public to address the Council on any item not appearing on the 
 agenda that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. The 
 Mayor will recognize you and when you come to the microphone, please state 
 your name for the record. You are not allowed to make personal attacks on 
 individuals or make comments which are slanderous or which may invade an 
 individual’s personal privacy. Please direct your questions and comments to  
 the City Council. 
 
a. Introduction of Newly Appointed Imperial Valley Housing Authority Executive 
 Director Kirk Mann by Robert Palacio, Imperial Housing Authority Board 
 Chairman. 
 
b. Introduction of Newly Promoted Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II Truman 

Rogers by Public Works Director Guillermo Sillas, PE. 
 
c. Introduction of Newly Hired Communications Dispatcher Shannon Walters by 

Police Chief Robert Sawyer.  
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA Items are approved by one motion. Council Members or 
 members of the public may request consent items be considered separately at a 
 time determined by the Mayor.  
 
a. Approve Accounts Payable: January 3, 2020  Pgs 5-15 
      January 10, 2020  Pgs 16-29 
       January 16, 2020  Pgs 30-36 
 
b. Approve City Council Minutes: January 7, 2020  Pgs 37-43 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Resolution No. 2020-  : Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Authorizing the City to Apply for 
an Award of $3.5M from the State of California Housing and Community 
Development Infill Infrastructure Program (IIP) Associated with La Serenita 
Apartments at Adams Park.  Pgs 44-46 

 
b. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Personnel Policy 153-17 Drug Free 

Workplace Policy and Adopt Resolution No. 2020- : Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Brawley, California re: the City of Brawley Drug Free 
Workplace Policy.  Pgs 47-60 

 
c. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Personnel Policy 153-18 Drug and 

Alcohol Testing Policy for All Employees Covered by DOT-FMCSA and Adopt 
Resolution No. 2020- : Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, 

2



 

California re: the Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for All Employees Covered by 
DOT-FMCSA.  Pgs 61-66 

 
d. Discussion and Potential Action Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Brawley, California Acting in Its Capacity as the 
Successor Agency for the Brawley Community Redevelopment Agency, 
Approving the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the period of July 1, 
2020 through June 30, 2021 and Approving Certain Related Actions.  Pgs 67-74  

 
e. Discussion and Potential Action re: Letter to Oppose SB 50 (Wiener) Planning 

and Zoning, Housing Development Incentives.  Pgs 75-84 
 
f. Discussion and Potential Action to Accept Annual and Five-Year Reports for Use 

of City of Brawley Development Impact Fees, Water and Sewer Capacity Fees  
in Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  Pgs 85-133  

 
5. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 
a. Update by Public Works Director Guillermo Sillas, PE  
 

i) Emergency Construction at the Brawley Water Treatment Plant 1) to 
Replace Components of Two Sedimentation Basins and 2) to Recondition 
Water Distribution Pumps and Motors 422 and 423 

 
b. Update by Interim Parks & Recreation Director Marjo Mello re: 2020 Recreation 

Leagues 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS   
 
7. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
8. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9. CITY CLERK REPORT 
 
10.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS 
 
a. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code 

§54956.8) 
Address: 948 Ken Bemis Drive, Brawley, California 

           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties: Brawley Hangar Co. LLC 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 

3



 

b. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code 
§54956.8) 
Address: 225 A Street, Brawley, California 

           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties:  Boys & Girls Club 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 
 
POTENTIAL LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Two (2) Cases 
 
EXISTING LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Two (2) Cases 

 
i. Frankie Rodriguez, Pablo C. Lopez, Marco A. Garcia, Omar 
 Balderas, Gerardo Vindiola, David Villalobos, Julian Jimenez, 
 Ricardo Rosales, Daniel Atondo, David Siquieroz, Jonathan 
 Gutierrez, Anthony Padilla, Julio Velasquez, Roberto Orozco, 
 Mariano C. Valenzuela, Jr., Raul Bernal, Ralph Walker, Jose Limon 
 and Pete Guzman, on behalf of themselves and all other 
 employees similarly situated vs. City of Brawley.  
   
ii. Brawley Public Safety Employee Association, Jeremy Schaffer, 
 David Holetz, Jorge Garibay, Darlene Garcia, Dennise Montano, 
 Nathan Montes-Gonzalez, Karla Razo, Daniel Swithenbank, Daniel 
 Schleyer, Ricardo Gutierrez, Juan Morales, Ana Amaya, Brian 
 Harsany, Angelica Garcia, Martha Garcia, Javier Martinez, Jake 
 Yuhas, Dean Beckwith, Ricardo Valdez, David Pham, Stephen 
 James Dyroff, Adriana Ruiz, Jon Dellinger, Isaac Romo, Jesse 
 Yuhas, Susanne Nickel, Rudy H. Nunez, Diana Diaz, Sixto Moreno, 
 Joon Kim, Francisco Mendoza, Maghen Caudill, Regina Kim vs. 
 City of Brawley.  

 

ADJOURNMENT Regular Meeting, Tuesday, February 4, 2020 @ 6:00 PM, 383 
Main Street, Brawley, California. Supporting Documents are available for public review 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California 92227 - Monday 
through Friday during Regular Business Hours; Individuals who require special 
accommodations are requested to give 48 hours prior notice.  Contact: Office of the City 
Clerk @ 760-351-3080. 
        

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



CITY OF BRAWLEY 

January 7, 2020 
 

The City Council of the City of Brawley, California met in regular session at 6:00 PM, City Council Chambers, 383 
Main, Brawley, California, the date, time and place duly established for the holding of said meeting. The City Clerk 
attests to the posting of the agenda pursuant to G.C. §54954.2. 
 
Mayor Kastner-Jauregui called meeting to order at @ 6:00 PM  

 PRESENT: Couchman, Hamby, Kastner-Jauregui, Nava, Wharton 
 ABSENT:    None  
 
INVOCATION Mayor Pro Tempore Hamby 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE CM Wharton 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Hamby/Wharton 5-0 

2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS (Not to exceed 4 minutes) this is the time for the public to address 
the Council on any item not appearing on the agenda that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City 
Council. The Mayor will recognize you and when you come to the microphone, please state your name for the 
record. You are not allowed to make personal attacks on individuals or make comments which are slanderous or 
which may invade an individual’s personal privacy. Please direct your questions and comments to the City 
Council. 
 
a. Shawn Rizzuto, Caltrans District 11, updated the City Council on the mud pots and briefed them on a new 

emergency contract that is currently being pursued just west of Brawley City Limits. Community outreach 
is underway to inform the public about upcoming repair work and detours.   

 
b. Gil Rebollar, Brawley resident, BESD Trustee and APCD staff member, thanked Mayor Pro Tempore 

Hamby for participating and help in coordinating the winter clothing drive, churros and coffee that took 
place on Saturday, January 4th at Brownies Diner.  He thanked Police Chief Sawyer for getting the word out 
and facilitating donations. The Village at Brawley Union High School accepted adult clothing and the 
children’s clothing will be donated directly to the Elementary Schools.  Valley Dry Cleaning has offered to 
clean the clothes.  The Imperial County Air Pollution Control District just released a first ever calendar  and 
copies were distributed.  Students from throughout the valley participated in a drawing contest on what 
clean air means to them. 

 
c. Ryan Kelley, Imperial County Board of Supervisors District 4, announced a response was received from 

the State of California Natural Resources Agency and Environmental Protection Agency re: the emergency 
declaration.  Governor Newson will be releasing his proposed budget and it will include $220 million more 
dollars for Salton Sea restoration. 

 
d. Misty Lee, Executive Director for the Boys & Girls Club of Imperial Valley, provided an update on the 

Teen Program and the partnership with the City.  The Club’s goal is to have 50-75 kids per day registered.  
Teens are provided with an outcome driven, high-quality club experience, caring adults and programs.  
Homework help and tutoring encourages them to become self-directed learners.  The program provides 
computers, printers and in partnership with ICOE, free Wi-Fi is offered.  A comprehensive health  and 
wellness program aims to improve overall health.  The Club will be starting the career launch program 
with the Ocotillo Wind Education Fund which prepares teens for the world of work but allows them to 
explore  vocations and sound educational decisions to help them find success,  Boys & Girls Club is a 

37



nonprofit that relies solely on donations from the community and grants.  It operates on a strict budget.  
Based on the previous MOU with the City, the fiscal year ends June 30th .  The Club respectfully requests 
that the City Council consider allowing it to continue to operate programs throughout the remainder of 
this fiscal year at no cost for use of the space. 

  
e. Ramon Castro, Ernie Mariscal and Raymond Gonzales, American Legion members, announced the 

planning of the first Veterans Festival that will take place on April 4th.  Information on health and wellness 
benefits for veterans will be featured and the, location of event will be the vacant lot next to Katie 
Santillan’ s property on Panno and Highway 86. 

  
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 
a. Recognition of Brawley Residents, Rotary Interact Club and Kiwanis Club Members for the Hinojosa Park 

Tree Stewardship Training.   
 
Mayor and Council presented Certificates of Recognition to community members that participated in the tree 

planting at Hinojosa Park on November 16, 2019 and completed tree stewardship training.  These included BUHS 

Rotary Student Interact Club Members Brendon Garibay, Fernanda Flores, Sarah Huang, Ximena Torres, Alexia 

Renteria and BUHS Kiwanis Key Club Member Octavio Cardenas, Community Members Maria Teresa Chabolla, 

Michael Noriega, Robin Kelley, Bridget Kelley and Conor Kelley, Parks & Rec Commissioners Mary Miller and Julio 

Jauregui, County of Imperial Air Pollution Control District (APCD) Representative Gil Rebollar and County 

Supervisor Ryan Kelley.  

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA Items are approved by one motion. Council Members or members of the public may 

request consent items be considered separately at a  time determined by the Mayor.  

The consent agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Wharton/Couchman  5-0 
  

AYES:    Couchman, Hamby, Kastner-Jauregui, Nava, Wharton 
NAYES:   None      
ABSENT:   None  
ABSTAIN: None 
 

a. Approved Accounts Payable: December 5, 2019, December 12, 2019 and December 19, 2019.  
 
b. Approved City Council Minutes: November 5, 2019, November 19, 2019 and December 3, 2019. 
       
c. Approved 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-06: Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Brawley, 

 California, Amending the Brawley Municipal Code to Change the Zoning Designation for Specified 

 Properties.  

 

d. Adopted Resolution No. 2020-01: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California 

 Amending Fiscal  Year 2019/2020 City of Brawley Budget for the Parks & Recreation Department for 

 $11,683.00.  

 

e. Authorized Contract Change Order No. 003 to Contract 2018-05 Streets Rehabilitation Phase 11 
(Construction) for $0.00 to Aggregate Products, Inc. with a Contract Time Extension of 53 Calendar Days.  

 
f. Rejected Claim as recommended by Carl Warren & Company Claims Management Adjusters for Claimant: 

Arturo Beltran.   

38



 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a. Conduct the Public Hearing under the Requirements of the Tax and Equity Fiscal Responsibility Act 

(TEFRA) and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).   

City Manager Bayon Moore reported that a correction to the noticing period was necessary.  It is staff’s 

recommendation to rescind the prior resolution, hold a new public hearing and consider action on a new 

resolution.   

OPENED PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:32 pm 
 
There were no comments. 
 
CLOSED PUBLIC HEARING @ 7:33 pm 
 
 1) Resolution No. 2020- : Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Rescinding 
  Resolution No. 2019-54. 
 
The City Council approved Resolution No. 2020-02: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California 
rescinding Resolution No. 2019-54.  m/s/c  Couchman/Wharton  5-0 
 
 2) Resolution No. 2020- : Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Approving,  
  Authorizing and Directing Execution of a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the  
  California Municipal Finance Authority and Approving the Issuance of Revenue Bonds by the  
  Authority for the Purpose of Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition, Construction and   
  Improvement of  Certain Facilities for the Benefit of Brawley Pacific Associates Iii, a   
  California Limited Partnership. 
 
The City Council approved Resolution No. 2020-03: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California 
Approving, Authorizing and Directing Execution of a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the  California 
Municipal Finance Authority and Approving the Issuance of Revenue Bonds by the Authority for the Purpose of 
Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition, Construction and Improvement of Certain Facilities for the Benefit of 
Brawley Pacific Associates Iii, a California Limited Partnership.  m/s/c  Couchman/Wharton 5-0 
 
6. REGULAR BUSINESS 

a. Discussion and Potential Action to Authorize Professional Engineering Services Agreement with Lee & Ro 
 Engineering, Inc. for Rancho Los Lagos Water Impact Study in an Amount Not to Exceed $35,852.00. 
 
 Staff Report – Guillermo Sillas, Public Works Director  
 
Rancho Los Lagos, LLC entitled a project in unincorporated Imperial County. The project aims to be served by the 
City of Brawley’s Water Treatment Plant. The project area is located outside the City’s water service area. Because 
the City of Brawley is the plant in closest proximity, LAFCo has informed the City of Brawley of the obligation per 
State of California policy to serve the area with potable water. The City has approached Rancho Los Lagos to 
provide to absorb the cost of the water study on a percentage basis, which amounts to 25% of the total cost of 
study. When calculated, the amount charged to Rancho Los Lagos Development is $8,958.00. This study would 
increase shared knowledge in a number of ways and allow both parties to move forward with the development. 
 
CM Wharton asked about the cost the City is covering. 
 

39



PW Director Sillas advised that the developer is covering 25% and the City is covering the remaining 75%. 
  
City Manager Bayon Moore stated that payment on pro rata basis was determined based on the scope of work. 
That portion that only benefits Rancho Los Lagos Project was determined to be 25%.  The remainder is 75% and is 
information that is helpful to the City in planning for increased water demands.   
 
The City Council authorized the Professional Engineering Services Agreement with Lee & Ro Engineering Inc. for 
the Rancho Los Lagos Water Impact Study in an amount not to exceed $35,852.00.  m/s/c  Nava/Couchman 5-0 
 
b. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Expenditure Plan and City Council Resolution No. 2020- : 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Accepting Grant Funds from the State of 
California Citizen’s Option for Public Safety (COPS) FY 2017-2018 through the State of California Local 
Safety and Protection Account.  

  
 Staff Report – Robert Sawyer, Police Chief 
 
The Brawley Police Department identified resources available to the City through the Citizen’s Option for Public 

Safety (COPS) grant funding. Currently, fund balances are $155,152.48 for FY 2017-2018 which are available for 

distribution to the City. The grant offers the City the ability to use the funding towards frontline police services and 

equipment that are necessary to perform duties on an annual basis. This particular request will be used for 

communication services and equipment as part of the Nexgen upgrade and the ongoing cost for communication 

devices through IVECA for the radio systems.  

The City Council approved Resolution No. 2020-04: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Brawley, California  
Accepting Grant Funds from the State of California Citizen’s Option for Public Safety (COPS) FY 2017-2018 through 
the State of California Local Safety and Protection Account.   m/s/c  Nava/Hamby  5-0 
 

c. Discussion and Potential Action re: Mayoral Appointment of City Council Members to Boards, 

 Commissions and Committees for 2020.   

MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS TO 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES WITH COUNCIL REPRESENTATION 

January 07, 2020 
 

Boards/Commissions/Committees Delegate Alternate 

Brawley Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Hamby Bayon Moore 

Imperial County Air Pollution District Board of Directors Couchman Kastner-Jauregui 
Imperial County Emergency Food & Shelter Program (EFSP) Kastner-Jauregui Wharton 
Imperial County Film Commission Kastner-Jauregui Hamby 
Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) Nava Wharton 
Imperial County Local Transportation Authority (LTA) Nava Wharton 

Imperial County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) Nava Wharton 

League of California Cities Kastner-Jauregui     Whartong 
North County Coalition of the Arts (NOCCA) Couchman Kastner-Jauregui 
Imperial County Community & Economic Development Couchman Nava 
Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Joint Powers Authority (AVAJPA) Gaste Escalante 
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA) Nava Wharton 
Southern California Assn. of Governments (SCAG) General Assembly Delegate Nava Wharton 
Association of California Cities Allied with Prisons (ACCAP) Nava Kastner-Jauregui 
Airport Advisory Commission Wharton Couchman 

40



Imperial Valley Housing Authority Kastner-Jauregui Wharton 
Library Board of Trustees Hamby Couchman 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Commission/Youth Commission Hamby Kastner-Jauregui 
Planning Commission Hamby Kastner-Jauregui 

 
d. Discussion and Staff Direction re: Vacancy on City of Brawley Parks & Recreation Commission for Term 

Ending June 30, 2021.  

 The City Council directed staff to advertise and bring applicants to a future meeting. 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

a. Record of Building Permits for November 2019 in the City of Brawley, Prepared by Oscar Escalante, 

 Interim Building Official.   

8. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

a. Monthly Staff Report for January 2020, Prepared by Personnel & Risk Management Administrator Shirley 

 Bonillas.  

b. Update by Public Works Director Guillermo Sillas, PE  
 
 i) Emergency Construction at the Brawley Water Treatment Plant 1) to Replace Components of  
  Two Sedimentation Basins and 2) to Recondition Water Distribution Pumps and Motors 422 and  
  423. 
 

Delays have been encountered with the contractor.  We have requested a revised plan 
to recover lost time.  

 
2) On December 17,  2019, the contractor delivered pump 422 to the WTP for installation. There 

were problems with a gasket and the shaft did not fit. They returned December 20th with another 
gasket and the fixed shaft for installation. The pump 422 installation was completed.   Pump 423 
was removed and was taken to the shop for rebuild.  On January 6, 2020, the contractor 
informed that the company doing the coating is working on the column sandblasting closed 
during the holidays and are just returning. Once they complete the sandblasting, they will know if 
the column pipe requires any replacement.  The motor is fine and just needs to be reconditioned 
rather than rewound.  The impeller was very damaged and that most likely caused the damage 
they found to the drive-end of the motor.  Repairing that will require a little more machine work 
than anticipated so there will be a small price difference estimated at $2000.  Once the column’s 
condition is confirmed, they will have a good idea of when they can schedule installation.  

 
 ii) Emergency Installation of Traffic Signal at Cesar Chavez and Main Street. 
 

The permanent cabinet was installed on December 12, 2019 and everything is working properly.  
This is the last report on the emergency project.     

 
9. CITY TREASURER REPORT   

 

a. Investment Portfolio Report as of September 30, 2019. 

  

 Power Point Presentation – Tyler Salcido, Finance Director 

41



 PowerPoint presentation on file with the Office of the City Clerk. 

  

10. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS   

 
Couchman:  Attended Tree Lighting Ceremony, Coin Collecting presentation at the Library,   
   Fundraiser at the Stockmen’s Club for Claddagh Club, Market Days and parade in  
   Imperial, Gun Show in Yuma and many activities during the holidays.  
 
Nava:    Attended the Tree Lighting Ceremony, Angel Tea Party, wrote letters of   
   recommendation for some students applying for college.   
 
Wharton:  Attended the Tree Lighting Ceremony, Angel Tea Party and looks forward to 2020 
 
Hamby:  Attended Chamber Board Meeting,  Winter Clothing Drive at Brownies.  Fielded 

concerns about City’s financial constraints, changes in service levels, building inspector 
staffing changes, homelessness in the colder weather.  Received some positive 
comments from acquaintances and friends that things are looking cleaner and nicer. 
Less fireworks but more gunfire on New Year’s Eve were observed. 

 
Kastner-Jauregui:  Attended the Tree Lighting Ceremony, Angel Tea Party, Pure Gro Community Meeting, 

Imperial Valley Cancer Support Center Fundraiser, Senior Center Club Meeting and 
informed them of recent changes.  Attended Film Commission premiere opening of 
Jumanji.  Accepted an invitation by the City of El Centro to meet the new Consulate of 
Calexico  and the new Mayor of Mexicali.  On January 31st, presented a Mayor of the Day 
Certificate to Mary Hartfield, a 43 year employee of Vons.  

 
11. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
a. Public Works once again engaged in an emergency repair of Allen Street.  The Public Works team was re-

assembled just as the work week was ending. This exact area is scheduled for a permanent fix and is 
currently out to bid. 

 
b. Police and Fire Departments also had an extremely busy two week window.  The Police  Department 

addressed a number of significant events.  It was a difficult stretch as the City began to schedule 
transitions with reduced staffing levels.   

 
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
a. Oswalt and Associates will be closing at the end of the month and plans to relocate operations to Brawley 

are underway. 
 

13. CITY CLERK REPORT   None to report 
 

14.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
a. Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA) for Insurance Claims Discussions 

 

The Legislative Body, as a Member of a Joint Powers Authority, formed for purposes of insurance pooling 

pursuant to California Government Code § 6500 et seq., will meet in closed session to discuss claims for 

the payment of tort liability losses, public liability losses, or workers' compensation liability incurred by 

the Joint Powers Agency or a Local Agency Member of the Authority. There are 38 potential claims 

(California Government Code § 54956.9) 

42



EXISTING LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Two (2) Cases 

 i. Frankie Rodriguez, Pablo C. Lopez, Marco A. Garcia, Omar Balderas, Gerardo Vindiola, David  
  Villalobos, Julian Jimenez, Ricardo Rosales,  Daniel Atondo, David Siquieroz, Jonathan Gutierrez,  
  Anthony Padilla,  Julio Velasquez, Roberto Orozco, Mariano C. Valenzuela, Jr., Raul Bernal, Ralph  
  Walker, Jose Limon and Pete Guzman, on behalf of themselves and all other employees similarly  

  situated vs. City  of Brawley.  
   
 ii. Brawley Public Safety Employee Association, Jeremy Schaffer, David Holetz, Jorge Garibay,  
  Darlene Garcia, Dennise Montano, Nathan Montes-Gonzalez, Karla Razo, Daniel Swithenbank,  
  Daniel Schleyer, Ricardo Gutierrez, Juan Morales, Ana Amaya, Brian Harsany, Angelica Garcia,  
  Martha Garcia, Javier Martinez, Jake Yuhas, Dean Beckwith, Ricardo Valdez, David Pham, Stephen 
  James Dyroff, Adriana Ruiz, Jon Dellinger, Isaac Romo, Jesse Yuhas, Susanne Nickel, Rudy H.  
  Nunez, Diana Diaz, Sixto Moreno, Joon Kim, Francisco Mendoza, Maghen Caudill, Regina Kim vs.  
  City of Brawley.  
 
POTENTIAL LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel – One (1) Case 

REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS 

a. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code §54956.8) 
 Address: 225 A Street, Brawley, California 
           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties:  Boys & Girls Club 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 
b. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code §54956.8) 
 
 Address: APNs 047-231-013 and 047-231-014, Brawley, CA 
           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties:  R. Garcia Construction, Inc. 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 

 
15.  ADJUOURNMENT @ 7:35pm 

 
 
______________________ 
Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

         

43



44



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

 

  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING 

  THE CITY TO APPLY FOR AN AWARD FROM THE INFILL INFRASTRUCTURE  

  PROGRAM. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Recipient is authorized to do business in the State of 

California; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Recipient wishes to apply for and receive an allocation of 

funds through the Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (“IIG”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, The State of California Department of Housing and Community 

Development (the “Department”) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability 

(“NOFA”) for IIG established under Assembly Bill 101 (Chapter 159, Statutes of 

2019) and Part 12.5 (commencing with section 53559) of Division 31 of the 

Health and Safety Code, which authorizes the Department to approve funding 

allocations utilizing monies made available by the State Legislature, subject 

to the terms and conditions of the statute and the IIG Guidelines implemented 

October 30, 2019.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED: That the Recipient pursuant to the 

above-described Notice of Funding Availability wishes to apply for and receive 

an allocation of funds in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000(the "IIG Grant"). 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER: That in connection with the Recipient's IIG  Grant, 

the  Recipient is authorized and directed to enter into, execute, and deliver 

a State of California Standard Agreement, and any and all other documents 

required or deemed necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the full 

intent and purpose of the above resolution, in order to evidence the IIG 

Grant, the Recipient's obligations related thereto, and the Department's 

security therefore; including, but not limited to, an affordable housing 

covenant, a performance deed of trust, a disbursement agreement, and certain 

other documents required by the Department as security for, evidence of or 

pertaining to the IIG Grant, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the 

"IIG Grant Documents"). 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER: That Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager of the City of 

Brawley is hereby authorized to execute the IIG Grant Documents, and any 

amendment or modifications thereto, on behalf of the Corporation. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Brawley City 

Council held on January 21, 2020. 

 

        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Norma Kastner Jauregui, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

45



STATE OF CALIFORNIA} 

COUNTY OF IMPERIAL} 

CITY OF BRAWLEY} 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020- was passed and adopted 

by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular meeting 

held on the 21st day of January 2020 and that it was so adopted by the 

following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:     

 NAYES:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:   

 

DATED:  January 21, 2020    ______________________ 
        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

46



47



 

City of Brawley 

SUBJECT:   Drug Free Workplace Policy 

DATE:    January 14, 2020 

POLICY NO.:  153-17 

DEPARTMENT:   Personnel & Risk Management 
 

 
I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to maintain a workplace that is free of drugs and alcohol and to 
discourage drug and alcohol abuse by employees.  With the intent of maintaining safe and 
efficient working conditions for employees, substance abuse is defined as incompatible with 
health, safety, efficiency, and success. Employees who are under the influence of alcohol or who 
have any illegal drugs in their system, who abuse legal drugs while conducting or performing 
business, endanger their own health and safety and the health and safety of others, and can 
cause a number of other work-related problems.  These include absenteeism and tardiness, 
substandard job performance, increased workloads for coworkers, behavior that disrupts other 
employees, delays in the completion of work, inferior quality in service and disruption of 
resident relations. 
 
It is important for employees to understand that City policy governs not only the abuse of 
alcohol and illegal drugs, but also the use and abuse of legal drugs in the workplace. Employees 
who find the need to use legal drugs, including prescription and over-the counter drugs, should 
consult with and must comply with the provisions set forth in this City policy. 
 
This policy has been established as it relates to employee use of alcohol and drugs. The City’s 
interest is in avoiding accidents, promoting and maintaining safe and efficient working 
conditions for its employees, protecting its business, property, equipment and operations, and 
complying with all federal and state requirements.  This includes but is not limited to the Drug 
Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. § 8103) and the California Drug Free Workplace Act of 
1990 (Gov. Code § 8355).  As a condition of continued employment, each employee must abide 
by this policy. 
 
Certain employees may be subject to the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 
(Pub. L. No. 102-143, 105 Stat. 952, as amended) which requires alcohol and drug-testing of 
safety-sensitive transportation employees who are required to have a commercial driver’s 
license (49 CFR Parts 40, 382, 391, 392, and 395, as amended). To comply with Department of 
Transportation regulations, the agency has developed specific guidelines regarding when and 

48



how drug-alcohol testing will occur, as well as provisions on rehabilitative services available to 
all covered employees. The specific guidelines for covered employees who are required to have 
a commercial driver’s license are set forth in a separate commercial driver policy. Covered 
employees who are required to have a commercial driver’s license are covered by this policy to 
the extent that it conflicts with the commercial driver policy or with the Omnibus Transportation 
Employee Testing Act of 1991, as amended, the Federal Highway Administration Regulations, as 
amended, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, as amended, or any other applicable 
Department of Transportation Agency regulations governing drug testing of employees required 
to possess a commercial driver’s license. 
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to diminish the agency’s commitment to employ qualified 
disabled individuals or to provide reasonable accommodation to such individuals consistent with 
all federal, state and local laws. 
 

II. DEFINITIONS 

A. Controlled Substances: Any drug or substance that is classified by the federal Drug 
Enforcement Administration into the five schedules or classes on the basis of their 
potential for abuse, accepted use, and accepted safety under medical supervision. 
Examples of controlled substances include, but are not limited to marijuana 
metabolites, cocaine metabolites, opiate metabolites, amphetamines, and 
phencyclidine (PCP). 
 

B. Illegal Drugs or Other Controlled Substances: Illegal drugs or other controlled substance 
means any drug or substance that (i) is not legally obtainable under federal or state law; 
or (ii) is legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained; or (iii) has been legally 
obtained but is being sold or distributed unlawfully. 
 

C. Legal Drugs: Legal drugs means any drug, including prescription drugs and over the-
counter drugs, that has been legally obtained under federal and state law and that is not 
unlawfully sold or distributed. 
 

D. Abuse of any Legal Drug: Abuse of any legal drug means the use of any legal drug (i) for 
any purpose other than the purpose for which it was prescribed or manufactured; or (ii) 
in a quantity, frequency, or manner that is contrary to the instructions or 
recommendations of the prescribing physician or manufacturer. 
 

E. Drug Paraphernalia: Drug paraphernalia means any device or instrument used for 
injecting, smoking, consuming, or otherwise administering a controlled substance or 
legal and/or illegal drug, which includes, but is not limited to the items set forth in 
California Health and Safety Code section 11364. 
 

F. Reasonable Suspicion: Reasonable suspicion means a belief based upon objective facts, 
evidence, or other indicators sufficient to lead a reasonably prudent person to suspect 
that an employee is under the influence of drugs or alcohol so that the employee’s 
ability to perform the functions of the job is impaired or so that the employee’s ability 
to perform his/her job is reduced. For example, any of the following, alone or in 
combination, may constitute reasonable suspicion:  

49



1. Slurred speech; 
 

2. Alcohol odor on breath; 
 

3. Cannabis odor on breath/person; 
 

4. Unsteady walking and movement; 
 

5. Physical impairment (e.g., glassy eyes, eye dilation, shaking, or erratic 
movement); 
 

6. An accident involving agency property that provides a reasonable basis to 
believe that the accident was likely to have been caused by impairment from 
drugs or alcohol; 
 

7. Physical altercation; 
 

8. Verbal altercation; 
 

9. Unusual behavior: 
 

10. Job impairment; 
 

11. Possession of alcohol or drugs; or 
 

12. Information obtained from a reliable source with personal knowledge. 
 

G. Possession: Possession means that an employee has the substance on his or her person 
or otherwise under his or her control. 
 

H. Under the Influence: Under the influence means having drugs and/or alcohol in the 
employee’s system as evidenced by applicable testing procedures, and/or exhibiting 
conduct or behavior demonstrating that the employee is impaired by drugs or alcohol, 
including legal drugs. 
 

I. Safety-Sensitive Employees: Safety-sensitive positions include those positions with 
duties that are fraught with such risks to others that even a momentary lapse of 
attention can have disastrous consequences, including, but not limited to the following: 
 

1. Positions that include interaction with children are those in which employees 
are directly responsible for protecting children or have continuous interaction or 
supervision that puts them in a position of influence over children. 
 

2. Positions that have a history of drug or alcohol use include those where the City 
has established the existence of documented problems with drug or alcohol use 
by employees in a particular position or particular department. 
 

50



Positions that are subject to the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 
are also classified as “safety-sensitive” as that term is defined by the Department of 
Transportation regulations and federal law. Testing for these employees is addressed in 
a separate policy. 
 

III. THE AGENCY’S CONSENT FOR USE OF LEGAL DRUGS 
 

A. Use of Legal Drugs: The agency recognizes that it may be necessary for employees to 
use legal drugs from time to time. The agency also recognizes that an employee who is 
using legal drugs might become impaired by the drug such that the employee's ability to 
adequately or safely perform is compromised. In order to accommodate employees who 
might be required to use legal drugs, and to help assure that no serious adverse 
consequences in the workplace result from such drug use, employees are required to 
obtain the City’s consent and comply with certain disclosure and work-restriction 
requirements under the following circumstances. 

 
B. When Consent is Required: Employees who know or should know that their use of legal 

drugs might endanger their own safety or the safety of another person, or might pose a 
risk of significant damage to the City’s property, or might substantially interfere with 
their job performance or the efficient operation of the City’s business, are obligated to 
report such drug use to the Personnel Director or the City Manager, and to obtain the 
City’s consent to continue working. The City reserves the right to have either a City 
designated physician or the employee's own physician determine whether it is advisable 
for the employee to continue working while taking such drugs. 

 
C. Duty to Disclose: Employees who operate or who are responsible in any way for the 

operation, custody or care of the City’s property, or for the safety of other employees or 
other persons, have a duty to disclose the nature of their job duties to any prescribing 
physician or pharmacist and/or to an City designated physician or pharmacist and to 
inquire of the physician(s) or pharmacist whether their use of the drugs prescribed 
might result in the dangers, risks or impairment that this policy is intended to prevent. 

 
D. Restrictions on Work: The City reserves the right to restrict the work activities of any 

employee who is using legal drugs or prohibit any employee from working entirely while 
he or she is using legal drugs. 

 
E. Duty to Refrain from Working: Each employee using legal drugs has a duty to not report 

for work while impaired by the drug if such impairment might result in serious harm or 
damage or might interfere with his or her job performance. Accordingly, even if an 
employee has obtained the City’s consent to continue working while taking legal drugs, 
the employee will not be authorized to work while impaired by the use of such drug if 
the employee knows or has reason to know that working while impaired might 
endanger the safety of the employee or some other person, pose a risk of significant 
damage to the City’s property, or substantially interfere with the employee's job 
performance or the efficient operation of the City’s business. 

 
 

51



IV. PROHIBITED CONDUCT 

A. Scope: The prohibitions of this section apply whenever the interests of the agency may 
be adversely affected, including, but not limited to any time the employee is: 
 

1. On City premises, in the workplace, or in uniform; 
 

2. Conducting or performing City business, regardless of location; 
 

3. Operating or responsible for the operation, custody, or care of City vehicles, 
equipment, or other property, or 
 

4. Responsible in any way for the safety of other individuals associated with the 
City, including, but not limited to, co-employees, management, visitors, 
residents and vendors. 
 

B. No Right of Privacy: The agency respects the individual privacy of its employees. 
However, employee privacy does not extend to the employee’s use of City-provided 
equipment, supplies, or property. Employees should be aware that the terms of this 
policy limit their privacy in the workplace. Furthermore, employees should have no 
reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to City property, which may be searched 
at any time. 
 

C. Alcohol: The following acts are prohibited and subject an employee to discipline, 
including, but not limited to termination: 
 

1. The unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, 
transportation or dispensation of alcohol; or  
 

2. Being under the influence of alcohol as defined by applicable state law. 
 

D. Illegal Drugs: The following acts are prohibited and subject an employee to discipline,  
including, but not limited to termination: 
 

1. The use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, 
or dispensation of any illegal drug or other controlled substance or drug 
paraphernalia; or 
 

2. Having any illegal drug or other controlled substance in your system. 
 

E. Legal Drugs: The following acts are prohibited and subject an employee to discipline, 
including, but not limited to termination:  
 

1. The abuse of any legal drug; or 
 

2. The purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, dispensation, or 
possession of any legal prescription or over-the-counter drug in a manner 
inconsistent with law; or 

52



3. Working while impaired by the use of a legal drug whenever such impairment 
might endanger the safety of the employee or some other person, pose a risk of 
significant damage to City property, or substantially interfere with the 
employee’s job performance or the efficient operation of the City’s business in 
violation of Section III above; or 
 

4. Working without obtaining the required consent in violation of Section III, 
above; or 
 

5. Failure to make proper disclosure in violation of Section III, above. 
 

F. Recreational/Adult Use and Medicinal Cannabis: The City recognizes that the State of 
California has legalized the use of cannabis for recreational and certain medical uses. 
However, in accordance with federal and state law, the City treats cannabis the same as 
any other drug that is subject to regulation under this policy. Moreover, although the 
use of cannabis is legally permissible in the State of California, it remains a prohibited 
and controlled substance under federal law. The City reserves the right to take 
disciplinary action under this policy when cannabis or cannabis products are involved, 
whether it is used for medicinal or non-medicinal purposes, and whether or not it has 
been prescribed for the employee’s use. 
 

V. SUBSTANCE SCREENING 

A. Job Applicants: Job applicants may be required to undergo drug and alcohol testing as a 
condition of employment with the City. No drug and/or alcohol test shall be 
administered prior to the applicant receiving a conditional offer of employment. Only 
positions that present a special need for drug and/or alcohol testing will be subject to 
this section. For purposes of pre-employment drug and/or alcohol testing, special need 
includes safety-sensitive positions as defined in this policy. 

 
B. Employees: Current employees will be subject to drug or alcohol testing if they: 
 

1. Report to work or, while conducting or performing City business regardless of 
location, are directly observed and/or reasonably suspected of being under 
the influence of drugs or alcohol or exhibiting abnormal behavior or 
performance difficulties reasonably associated with substance abuse;  

 
2. Are involved in a work-related accident or injury that provides a reasonable 

basis to believe that the accident or injury was likely to have been caused by 
impairment from drugs or alcohol; 

 
3. Are subject to return to duty and/or follow-up testing following an employee’s 

return from drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation and/or treatment. 
 

C.  Testing: The agency may utilize each or all of the following testing methods: 
 

1. Pre-employment testing; 
 

53



2. Reasonable suspicion testing; 
 
3. Post-accident testing; and 
 
4. Testing authorized or required by federal or state regulations, including 

Department of Transportation regulations. 
 

VI. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

Violation of this policy by any employee may result in discipline, up to and including discharge, 
depending on the circumstances and at the discretion of the City.  At a minimum, disciplinary 
mandates for safety-sensitive positions, as required under Title 13 of the California Code of 
Regulations and Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, will be followed for those 
individuals in safety-sensitive positions.  Employees may also be required to participate in a drug 
and/or alcohol rehabilitation or counseling program/s. In certain instances, and solely at the 
City’s discretion, the City may enter into an agreement with an employee who would otherwise 
be disciplined to permit the employee to keep his or her job upon fulfilling certain requirements 
pertaining to drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation, including, but not limited to return to duty 
and/or follow-up testing.   
 

A. Effect of Criminal Conviction: An employee who is convicted under a criminal drug 
statute for a violation occurring in the workplace, while conducting or performing City 
business regardless of location, or during any City-related activity or event will be 
deemed to have violated this policy.  
 

B. Effect of a Positive Test: An employee who receives a positive test for drugs or alcohol 
will be in violation of this policy and will be subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination. An applicant who receives a positive test result for drugs or alcohol may 
have his or her conditional offer of employment rescinded and may not be hired. 
 

C. Refusal to Test: Includes, but is not limited to circumstances or behaviors such as: 
 

1. Failure to appear at the collection site in the time allotted; 
 

2. Leaving the collection site before the testing process is completed; 
 

3. Failure to provide a urine, breath, or saliva specimen; 
 

4. Failure to permit the observation or monitoring of specimen collection when it 
is required; 
 

5. Failure to provide a sufficient amount of urine or breath specimen without a 
valid medical explanation; 
 

6. Adulterating or diluting a urine, breath, or saliva specimen; 
 

7. Failure or refusal to take a second test when required; 

54



8. Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process. (Example: refusal to 
sign the testing form when required); 
 

[Note: A refusal to test shall be treated as a positive test result for the purposes of 
administration of this policy and any resulting disciplinary action.] 
 

D. Return to Duty/Follow-up Testing: An employee who has tested positive for drugs and 
alcohol or has successfully completed drug or alcohol rehabilitation may be required to 
comply with any required follow-up procedures or subsequent testing when directed to 
do so by the City in accordance with this policy. 
 

VII.  CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS 
 

Employees are required by this policy to notify the City of any conviction under a criminal drug 
statute for a violation occurring in the workplace, while conducting or performing City business 
regardless of location, or during any City-related activity or event, not later than five (5) days 
after any such conviction. For purposes of this policy, a conviction includes a finding of guilt, a 
plea or no contest, and/or an imposition of sentence by any judicial body charged with 
responsibility to determine violations of federal or state criminal drug and alcohol statutes. 
When required by applicable law, the City will notify agencies under contract of any employee 
who has been convicted under a criminal drug statute for a violation occurring while conducting 
or performing City business, regardless of location.  
 

VIII. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

Disclosures made by employees to the Personnel & Risk Management Administrator or City 
Manager concerning their use of legal drugs will be treated confidentially and will not be 
revealed to managers or supervisors unless there is an important work-related reason to do so 
or disclosure is required by law. Disclosures made by employees to the Personnel Director or 
City Manager concerning their participation in any drug or alcohol rehabilitation program will be 
treated confidentially. Laboratory reports and/or test results shall not appear in an employee’s 
general personnel file and information of this nature will be contained in a separate confidential 
medical folder. 
 
Managers and supervisors should restrict communications concerning possible violations of this 
policy to persons who have an important work-related reason to know. In addition, managers 
and supervisors should not disclose the fact of an employee's participation in any drug or 
alcohol counseling or rehabilitation program.  
 

IX. COUNSELING 
 

Employees who suspect they may have alcohol or drug problems, even in the early stages, are 
encouraged to voluntarily seek diagnosis and to follow through with the treatment as prescribed 
by qualified professionals. Employees who wish to voluntarily enter and participate in an 
approved alcohol or drug rehabilitation program are encouraged to contact the Personnel & Risk 
Management Administrator or City Manager, who will determine whether the City can 
accommodate the employee by providing unpaid leave for the time necessary to complete 
participation in the program. 

55



However, the City reserves the right to discipline employees, up to and including termination, 
who are discovered to have a problem with drugs and/or alcohol, and who do not come forward 
for help prior to the City’s discovery or the City’s demand that the employee submit to a drug 
and/or alcohol test. 
 

XII. REFERENCES 
 

California Drug Free Workplace Act of 1990, California Government Code Section 8350 
 
Federal Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, Title 41 Section 8103 

 

 

56



EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF 
RECEIPT OF DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 
 
This will acknowledge that I have received my copy of the City of Brawley Drug Free Workplace Policy 
(“Policy”) and that I have read the Policy and understand my rights and obligations under the Policy. 
 
I understand that this Policy represents only current policies, procedures, rights and obligations. 
Regardless of what the Policy states or provides, the City retains the right to add, change or delete 
provisions of the Policy and all other working terms and conditions without obtaining another person’s 
consent or agreement. 
 
My signature below further signifies that I have read this Policy and that I accept and will abide by all of 
its provisions. I understand that failure to fully comply with all terms set forth in this Policy may lead to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
 
PRINT FULL NAME _____________________________________________________ 
 
SIGNED ______________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
[RETAIN IN EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL FILE] 

57



APPENDIX A 
 
SAFETY-SENSITIVE POSITIONS 
 
 
 
All sworn and non-sworn personnel who work in the Police Department 
 
All sworn and non-sworn personnel who work in the Fire Department 
 
All Library personnel who interact with children to include LAMBS personnel 
 
Utility Worker I 
 
Utility Worker II 
 
Utility Leadman 
 
Assistant Streets and Utilities Maintenance Supervisor 
 
Streets and Utilities Maintenance Supervisor 
 
All employees who hold a Class A or Class B license and performs duties that require such licensure 

58



APPENDIX B 

REASONABLE SUSPICION REPORT 
 
Employee: Name:     Job Title:    

 
Department:    Supervisor’s Name:    
 

Observation: Date:    Time: (from    am/pm: to   am/pm) 
 

Location/Building:    
 

 
CAUSE FOR SUSPICION (Answer all that apply) 
 

1. Presence of Drugs, Alcohol, and/or Paraphernalia (specify):    
 

2. Appearance: ☐ Normal ☐ Flushed ☐ Puncture Marks 

  ☐ Disheveled ☐ Bloodshot Eyes ☐ Inappropriate wearing of sunglasses 

  ☐ Dilated/Constricted Pupils ☐ Profuse Sweating ☐ Tremors 

  ☐ Dry-mouth Symptoms ☐ Runny Nose/Sores ☐ Body Odor 

  ☐ Other      
 

3. Behavior 
 

   Speech: ☐ Normal ☐ Incoherent ☐ Slurred ☐ Silent 

  ☐ Confused ☐ Slowed  ☐ Whispering 

  ☐ Other      

   Awareness: ☐ Normal ☐ Confused ☐ Mood Swings ☐ Euphoria 

    ☐ Lethargic ☐ Lack of Coordination ☐ Paranoid ☐ Disoriented 

  ☐ Other      

 
4. Motor Skills 
 

   Balance: ☐ Normal ☐ Swaying ☐ Falling ☐ Staggering 

  ☐ Other      

   Walking & 

   Turning ☐ Normal ☐ Swaying ☐ Arms Raised for Balance 

  ☐ Stumbling ☐ Falling ☐ Reaching for Support 

  ☐ Other      

 
5. Other Observed Action or Behavior (specify, add other sheets as needed)   
 

   
 

   
 
Witnessed by: (must be a supervisor or manager trained in physical, behavioral, speech, and performance 
indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of controlled substances) 
 
 
         am/pm 

 (Signature)               (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 
 
 
         am/pm 
 (Optional 2nd Signature)               (Title)  (Date)  (Time) 

59



RESOLUTION NO.  2020- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING THE CITY OF BRAWLEY DRUG 

FREE WORKPLACE POLICY. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Brawley approved the current 

Drug-Free Workplace Policy on June 21, 2005; and 

  WHEREAS, an updated policy is needed to address changing State of 

California laws for recreational drug use. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Brawley hereby adopts the updated City of Brawley Drug Free Workplace Policy. 

 

 APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting held on the 21st day 

of January, 2020. 

  

        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 

COUNTY OF IMPERIAL)  

CITY OF BRAWLEY) 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-  was passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular 

meeting held on the 21st day of January 2020, and that it was so adopted by 

the following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:     

 NAYES:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

DATED:  January 21, 2020    __________________________ 

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

60



61



 

City of Brawley 

SUBJECT:   Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for all Employees Covered by DOT-FMCSA  

DATE:    January 14, 2020 

POLICY NO.:  153-18 

DEPARTMENT:   Personnel & Risk Management 
 

 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The U.S. Department of Transportation – Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (DOT-
FMCSA) requires all regulated employers, such as the City of Brawley, and its drivers to comply 
with Title 49 Part 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  The City of Brawley has adopted the 
employee drug and alcohol testing rules, regulations and practices as outlined within Title 49 
CFR Part 40, 382 and more specifically Title 49 CFR Part 382.701-727 concerning the DOT – 
FMCSA Commercial Driver’s License Drug and Alcohol Clearinghouse.   
 

II. CLEARINGHOUSE 
 

The Clearinghouse is a secure online database that will give employers, their Consortium/Third 
Party Administrator (“C/TPA”), their Service Agents, FMCSA, State Driver Licensing Agencies, and 
State Law Enforcement personnel real-time information about CDL driver’s drug and alcohol 
program violations, thereby enhancing safety on the Nation’s roadways.  The Clearinghouse is 
an administrative tool to help keep potentially impaired CDL drivers off public roadways.  
 

III. EMPLOYER REGISTRATION & QUERY MANDATES 
 

All regulated employers, such as the City of Brawley, are required to register their agency within 
the Clearinghouse, in order to perform a “Full Query” of all regulated job applicants, prior to 
placement.  Employers are required to perform a minimum of one “limited Query” of all 
regulated employees, annually.  Limited Query “hits” require the employer to conduct a “Full 
Query”.   
 

IV. REGULATED EMPLOYEE CONSENT 
 

All regulated employees are required to give the agency a multi-year written consent, allowing 
the employer to perform their mandated annual query of all its regulated employees.  All 
regulated employees are required to give the agency their written consent and electronic 
consent within the Clearinghouse, anytime the employer is required to perform a “Full Query”.  

62



Any regulated employee who fails or refuses to provide their written and/or electronic consent 
for either query will be removed from safety-sensitive duties and placed on unpaid leave for no 
more than five calendar days, or until consent is provided.  If consent is not provided after the 
fifth day, the regulated employee will no longer be able to perform the essential duties of his 
position and subject to termination. 
 

V. REGULATED EMPLOYEE REGISTRATION AND PRE-DUTY REPORTING 
 

The City of Brawley, under its own authority, requires all regulated employees/applicants to 
accurately and honestly register themselves within the Clearinghouse, within five calendar days 
of receipt of this notice at:  https://clearinghouse.fmcsa.dot.gov/Register .  The City will make a 
device and internet connection available, during the employee’s paid work time, to allow the 
regulated employee ample opportunity to register within the Clearinghouse as a “Driver”.  
Regulated applicants must register immediately upon receiving a conditional job offer from the 
City.  Regulated employees who refuse or fail to register within the stated five-day window will 
be removed from safety-sensitive duties and placed on unpaid leave for no more than five 
calendar days, or until Clearinghouse Driver registration is completed. If consent is not provided 
after the fifth day, the regulated employee will no longer be able to perform the essential duties 
of his position and is subject to termination.  All regulated employees, prior to entering or 
resuming any safety-sensitive function are required to report any personal use/consumption of 
potentially impairing substances/medications/drugs or any alcohol intake that has occurred 
within the previous four hours of their start of safety-sensitive duties; or any drug or alcohol 
related arrest, citation, conviction; or any actions causing their driving privileges to be modified, 
suspended or revoked. 
 

VI. MANDATED REPORTERS 
 

The following are mandated to report information and/or drug/alcohol violations of Part 40 & 
382 into the Clearinghouse:  the Employer, their C/TPA, the Medical Review Officer (MRO), the 
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) and the FMCSA Regulated Driver (Employee).  Reportable 
items include, but not limited to an:  MRO Confirmed Positive drug test, EBT Confirmed Breath 
Alcohol Test at or above .04%BrAC, Refusal to Test determination, Return to Duty & SAP 
compliance data.  For more information about the Clearinghouse or regulations visit: 
https://clearinghouse.fmcsa.dot.gov/Learn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63

https://clearinghouse.fmcsa.dot.gov/Register
https://clearinghouse.fmcsa.dot.gov/Learn


REGULATED DRIVER CLEARINGHOUSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
 

I acknowledge receipt of this document and understand its contents.  My employer has advised me of 
the Department of Transportation – Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s (DOT-FMCSA) Drug & 
Alcohol Testing regulation, outlined in Title 49 CFR Part 40 & Part 382, 707-727, which is added to their 
Drug Prevention and Employee Testing Policy.  Furthermore, I have been given free computer access to 
register within the Clearinghouse and free printing options for drug & alcohol awareness materials, to 
include Driver/Owner-Operator information concerning the new DOT-FMCSA Commercial Driver’s 
License Drug & Alcohol Clearinghouse, implemented by DOT-FMCSA January 6, 2020. 
 
I acknowledge the City of Brawley has adopted Title 49 CFR Part 40 & 832 as City Policy and receipt 
 
 
PRINT DRIVER’S FULL NAME ______________________________________________________________ 
 
SIGNED ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE _______________________________            TIME _______________________________________ 
 
 
 
SUPERVISOR’S PRINTED NAME ___________________________________________________________ 
 
SIGNED ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE _______________________________            TIME _______________________________________ 
 
 
[RETAIN IN EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL FILE] 

64



RESOLUTION NO.  2020- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING THE DRUG AND ALCOHOL 

TESTING POLICY FOR ALL EMPLOYEES COVERED BY DOT-

FMCSA. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Brawley must comply with the Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) as it relates to vehicles with a gross weight of 26,001 or 

more; and 

  WHEREAS, Title 49, Part 40 of the CFR mandates drug testing upon hire 

and random testing thereafter of all Class A and Class B California Driver’s 

License holders; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 49, Part 40 of the CFR specifically Part 382.701-727 now 

requires registration by the driver and by the driver’s employer with the 

Clearinghouse; and 

  WHEREAS, it is the desire of City Council to fully comply with all 

regulations from the Department of Transportation – Federal Motor Carrier 

Safety Administration (DOT-FMCSA) governing our employees who are required to 

possess a Class A and Class B Driver’s License.  

 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Brawley hereby adopts City of Brawley Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for all 

Employees Covered by DOT-FMCSA. 

 

 APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting held on the 21st day 

of January, 2020. 

 

        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

         

        _____________________________ 

        Norma Kastner Jauregui, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



STATE OF CALIFORNIA} 

COUNTY OF IMPERIAL} 

CITY OF BRAWLEY} 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020- was passed and adopted 

by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular meeting 

held on the 21st day of January 2020 and that it was so adopted by the 

following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:     

 NAYES:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:   

 

DATED:  January 21, 2020    ______________________ 
        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



67



68



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA  ACTING IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE BRAWLEY COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, APPROVING THE RECOGNIZED 

OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 

2020 THROUGH JUNE 30,2021 AND APPROVING CERTAIN 

RELATED ACTIONS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code § 34172 (a)(1), the Brawley 

Community Redevelopment Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with the provisions of the Health and Safety Code, 

on January 17, 2012, the City Council elected to serve in the capacity of the 

Successor Agency for the Brawley Community Redevelopment Agency, (the 

“Successor Agency”); and 

WHEREAS, per Health and Safety Code § 34177 (o)(1), commencing with the 

ROPS covering the period from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 and thereafter, 

agencies shall submit an Oversight Board approved annual ROPS to California 

Department of Finance and the Imperial County Auditor-Controller by February 

1, 2020 and each February 1 thereafter the Successor Agency is required to 

complete a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) in the manner 

provided for by the Department of Finance.   

WHEREAS, the ROPS is the basis for the Successor Agency’s authority to 

make payments due for enforceable obligations; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to its approval by the Successor Agency, the ROPS 

must also be approved by the Imperial County Oversight Board (“OS Board”) to 

the Successor Agency and is reviewable by the County Auditor-Controller, the 

California Department of Finance and the California State Controller’s 

Office; and 

WHEREAS, staff has prepared the ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 

through June 30, 2021, which consists of several spreadsheets that are 

appended to this Resolution as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code § 34177 (m), an Oversight 

Board-approved ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 must 

be submitted to the California Department of Finance and the Imperial County 

Auditor-Controller not later than February 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of this Resolution, the ROPS will 

be considered by the OS Board and once approved by the OS Board the ROPS will 

be forwarded to the County Auditor-Controller, County Administrative Officer, 

the State Controller and the California Department of Finance; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution has been reviewed with respect to 

applicability of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), the State 

CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, §§ 15000 et seq., 

hereafter the “Guidelines”), and the City’s environmental guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution is not a “project” for purposes of CEQA, as 

that term is defined by Guidelines § 15378, because this Resolution is an 

organizational or administrative activity that will not result in a direct or 

indirect physical change in the environment, per § 15378(b)(5) of the 

Guidelines; and 

69



WHEREAS, all of the prerequisites with respect to the approval of this 

Resolution have been met. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Brawley, acting in its capacity as the Successor Agency for the Brawley 

Community Redevelopment Agency, as follows: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are a 

substantive part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Successor Agency’s ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 

through June 30, 2021, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A”, is approved and adopted. 

Section 3. The City Manager, or designee, is hereby authorized and 

directed to: i) post the ROPS for the period of July 1, 

2020 through June 30, 2021 on the City’s website; ii) 

transmit the ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 through 

June 30, 2021 to the OS Board for their review; iii) 

subsequent to OS Board approval, transmit the ROPS for the 

period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 to the 

Imperial County Auditor-Controller, County Administrative 

Officer, the State Controller and the California Department 

of Finance; and iv) make ministerial revisions to the ROPS, 

take such other actions and execute such other documents as 

are necessary to effectuate the intent of this Resolution, 

and to implement the ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 

through June 30,  2021 on behalf of the Successor Agency, 

including authorizing and causing such payments. 

Section 4. This Resolution is not a “project” for purposes of CEQA, as 

that term is defined by Guidelines § 15378, because this 

Resolution is an organizational or administrative activity 

that will not result in a direct or indirect physical 

change in the environment, per § 15378(b)(5) of the 

Guidelines. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon the date of its 

adoption. 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Successor 

Agency for the Brawley Community Redevelopment Agency held on January 21, 

2020. 

 

       CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Alma Benavides, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

70



STATE OF CALIFORNIA} 

COUNTY OF IMPERIAL} 

CITY OF BRAWLEY} 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020- was passed and adopted 

by the Successor Agency for the Brawley Community Redevelopment Agency at a 

regular meeting held on the 21st day of January, 2020 and that it was so 

adopted by the following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:      

 NAYES:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

DATED:  January 21, 2018    __________________________ 

        Alma Benavides, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE 

BRAWLEY COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

(JULY 1, 2018 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019) 

 

(See Attachment) 

72



73



74



75



 

ACTION ALERT!! 
 

SB 50 (Wiener)  
Planning and Zoning.  

Housing Development Incentives. 
 

OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED 
 

 
Background: California is a geographically and demographically diverse state, and that is 
reflected in its 482 cities and 58 counties.  Local elected officials are charged by the California 
Constitution with protecting their citizens’ welfare. One chief way local governments do this is by 
exercising control over what gets built in their community.  Local officials weigh the need for 
additional housing against the concerns and desires of their constituents.  Where appropriate, 
those officials enact ordinances to shape their communities based on local conditions and 
desires.  Moreover, these planning actions and decisions take place within the confines of state 
laws that require local governments to plan and zone for new housing, subject to approval by 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), and under threat of 
fines for improper denial as a result of recent legislation.   
 
What Does SB 50 Specifically Do? 

 Recent amendments attempt to create an alternative planning process for 
jurisdictions to develop a “local flexibility plan” that, if approved by HCD, would exempt 
cities from nearly all aspects of SB 50 with the exception of requiring fourplexes in 
single-family zones.  Unfortunately given the lack of clarity and legislative direction, we 
can’t evaluate whether the “local flexibility plan” is a viable alternative. 
 

 Wastes time and money.  SB 50 would greatly undermine locally adopted General 
Plans, Housing Elements (which are certified by HCD, and Sustainable Community 
Strategies (SCS).  By allowing developers to override state approved housing plans, SB 
50 seriously calls to question the need for cities to develop these community based 
plans and the justification for spending millions of state and local funds on the planning 
process. 

  

 Gives away planning and zoning decisions to developers and transit agencies, 
who are unaccountable to local voters. Housing developers and transit agencies 
would have the power to determine housing densities, heights up to 55 feet, parking 
requirements, and design review standards for “transit-rich housing projects” within one-
half mile of a major transit stop.  For those “transit-rich housing projects” within one-
quarter mile radius of a stop on a high-quality bus corridor, developers would be able to 
determine housing density, and parking requirements above .5 spots per unit. 

 

 Creates difficult to define terms. As presently drafted, it is very difficult to determine 
what constitutes a “jobs-rich area” since the HCD and the Office of Planning and 
Research (OPR) are largely tasked with making that determination. 

 

 Provides greater density and no transportation solutions. SB 50 would require cities 
to allow greater density in communities that are high opportunity and jobs rich, but may 
lack access to public transit. This seems at odds with many state policies that encourage 
and incentivize more dense housing near transit so that individuals may become less 
dependent on automobiles. 

 

 Creates arbitrary and unfair exemptions.  SB 50 allows small cities in small counties 
to be exempt from the most extreme provisions. Shouldn’t all jurisdictions have the 

76



ability to have a community-led planning process that takes into account local needs and 
input as long as state objectives are still met?  Instead of arbitrarily establishing a 
population metric, wouldn’t it be much more appropriate to consider the full range of 
community characteristics when determining which areas of the state SB 50 should 
apply.       

 
 

ACTION:  
SB 50 will be heard by the Senate Appropriations Committee next Thursday, Jan. 23rd. All 
Senators need to hear from their cities, however, if you have a Senator on the Senate 
Appropriations Committee (roster below), please CALL them and voice your OPPOSITION 
as soon as possible.  
 
Requested Actions: 
 

1) If you have a member on the Senate Appropriations Committee, please CALL 
them as soon as possible. Talking points included below. 
 
This bill will be heard on Jan. 23rd. The Appropriations Committee does not register 
letters of support or opposition. 

 

SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 

  

Member District Room Phone 

Bates, Patricia (Vice-Chair) 36  3048  916 651 4036  

Bradford, Steven 35  2059  916 651 4035  

Hill, Jerry 13  5035  916 651 4013  

Jones, Brian 38  4088  916 651 4038  

Portantino, Anthony (Chair) 25  3086  916 651 4025  

Wieckowski, Bob 10  4085  916 651 4010  

 
2) Every Senator needs to hear from their cities, please voice your city’s concerns by 

sending a letter to Senator Wiener. Please be sure to copy your Senator on the letter. 
Sample letter attached. 
 

 
You can find your Legislator’s contact information here: http://findyourrep.legislature.ca.gov/.  
 

 
 
 
Talking Points:  
 

 Despite recent amendments, the CITY/TOWN of _________ unfortunately must remain 
opposed to SB 50 unless it is further amended. 
 

 The CITY/TOWN of ______ is pleased to see that recent amendments attempt to create 
an alternative planning process for jurisdictions to develop a “local flexibility plan.”  
Unfortunately we can’t evaluate whether the “local flexibility plan” is a viable alternative 
because the amendments do not clearly identify the elements of the plan. 
 

 Additionally, it is unclear why some cities should be treated differently just because they 
happen to have a population less than 50,000 and are also in a county with a population 
less than 600,000.  It would be much more appropriate to consider the full range of 

77

http://district36.cssrc.us/
http://sd35.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd13.senate.ca.gov/
https://jones.cssrc.us/
http://sd25.senate.ca.gov/
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
http://findyourrep.legislature.ca.gov/


community characteristics when determining which areas of the state SB 50 should 
apply.       
 

 By allowing developers to override state approved housing plans, SB 50 seriously calls 
to question the need for cities to develop these community based plans and the 
justification for spending millions of state and local funds on the planning process.   
 

 Why would the Legislature pass a bill that encourages developers to defy state approved 
housing plans and essentially waste millions of taxpayer dollars?  

    

 By not defining “jobs-rich area” in statute, there is no way of knowing if SB 50 will 

actually accomplish its stated goal. It is hard to understand why the Legislature would 

want the Executive Branch to define essential terms that have broad implications for how 

SB 50 would be implemented.   

78



Outline of SB 50 (Wiener) Planning and Zonings. Housing Development Incentives. 
As Amended 01/06/2020 

 
Key Elements of SB 50 as Amended 01/06/2020 

o Allows developers of certain types of housing projects to override locally developed and 
adopted height limitations, housing densities, and parking requirements.  These overrides are 
called “equitable communities incentives (ECI).” [Please see pages 2-3 for more detail]. 

o SB 50’s requirements are applied differently based on city population and the population of the 
county in which the city is located.  

o Requires all cities to allow up to fourplexes in single-family neighborhoods through a 
streamlined, ministerial approval process unless project would have specific, adverse impact 
upon public health or safety. 

o Allows “sensitive communities” identified by councils of governments to develop a community 
plan, as prescribed, and not be required to grant an ECI as long as the “community plan” 
achieves similar objectives and goals. 

o Allows cities to develop a HCD-approved “local flexibility plan”, as an alternative to the 
requirements in SB 50. 

 
The “Local Flexibility Plan:” Amendments adopted on January 6, 2020 
The amendments offer an alternative:  Cities and counties can adopt a “local flexibility plan” approved 
by HCD by January 1, 2023 or be required to grant ECI overrides of density, height and parking) of SB 50.   
 
A “local flexibility plan” submitted on or after July 1, 2021 to HCD, must do all of the following: 

 Affirmatively further fair housing, as that term is defined in Section 8899.50, to an extent as 
great or greater than if the local government were to grant an ECI. 

 Achieve a standard of transportation efficiency as great or greater than if the local government 
were to grant an ECI. 

 Increase overall feasible housing capacity for households of lower, moderate, and above 
moderate incomes, considering economic factors such as cost of likely construction types, 
affordable housing requirements, and the impact of local development fees. 

 
On or before July 1, 2021, OPR, in consultation with HCD, will develop guidelines for the submission and 
approval of a local flexibility plan.  Rules, regulations and guidelines may be adopted with limited public 
process. 
 
A local flexibility plan is an alternative to granting an ECI.  A local flexibility plan does not exempt a city 
from ministerial approval of a fourplex in a single-family zone. 
 
Comments Regarding the Amendments Adopted on January 6, 2020 

 It appears that the intent of the amendments is to provide local governments with an 
opportunity to develop their own plans to meet the goals and objectives of SB 50.  
Unfortunately, the amendments, as drafted, raise the following concerns: 

o OPR and HCD are tasked with developing “rules, regulations, or guidelines for the 
submission and approval of a local flexibility plan” without sufficient Legislative 
direction. This rulemaking process is exempt from the Administrative Procedures Act, 
thus allowing OPR and HCD to craft rules, regulations, or guidelines with little to no 
public input or oversight. 

79



o The elements of the plan are not clear:  “Achieve a standard of transportation 
efficiency as great or greater than if the local government were to grant equitable 
communities incentives.”  SB 50 does not contain any language regarding 
“transportation efficiency.”  Therefore, it is not possible to determine how HCD, OPR 
or a local government will determine how to meet this standard. 

o “Increase overall feasible housing capacity for households of lower, moderate, and 
above moderate incomes, considering economic factors such as cost of likely 
construction types, affordable housing requirements, and the impact of local 
development fees.” SB 50 does not contain any language regarding “feasible housing 
capacity for households of lower, moderate, and above moderate incomes,” nor does 
it address “economic factors such as cost of likely construction types, affordable 
housing requirements, and the impact of local development fees.” Therefore, it is not 
possible to determine how HCD, OPR or a local government will determine how to 
meet this standard. 

o Without clearly identified criteria, we are unable to evaluate whether the “local 
flexibility plan” is actually an alternative planning option. 

 
The Community Plan:  Sensitive Communities 
 
Unchanged by the amendments are SB 50’s alternative for “sensitive communities.”  Sensitive 
communities are determined by councils of governments (or by MTC in the ABAG region).  The ECI 
provisions of SB 50 will apply to a “sensitive community” after January 1, 2026 unless the community 
adopts a “community plan” aimed toward increasing residential density and multifamily housing choices 
near transit stops.  The community plan must: 
 

 Permit increased density and multifamily development near transit with all upzoning linked to 
onsite affordable housing requirements; 

 Include provisions to protect vulnerable residents from displacement; 

 Promote economic justice for workers and residents; and 

 Be developed in partnership with a nonprofit or community organization. 
 
Equitable Communities Incentives 
 
City must grant an Equitable Community Incentive (ECI) to “jobs-rich” or “transit-rich” project on a site 
zoned to allow housing with certain site exclusions as described below unless city makes finding that 
incentive would have a specific, adverse impact on any real property or historic district.  Project must 
comply with city’s conditional use or other discretionary permit approval process and with certain 
affordability requirements (or local inclusionary ordinance) and is subject to CEQA review.   
  
Counties with a population less than or equal to 600,000:  Cities with population OVER 50,000 

 Equitable Community Incentive to a jobs-rich or transit-rich housing project located within ½ 
mile of a major transit stop with a minimum density of 30 units/acre in “metropolitan” 
community or 20 units/acre in “suburban” community: 

o 1 additional story or fifteen feet in height. 
o Waiver of 0.6 Floor Area Ratio. 
o Maximum 0.5 parking spots per units; and no minimum parking requirement if within ¼ 

mile of rail transit station in city with population greater than 100,000. 
o Waiver of maximum controls density. 

80



o Site exclusions:  architecturally or historically significant district; special flood hazard 
area. 

 Mandatory inclusionary housing requirements apply. 

 Existing Density Bonus Law may be applied to the project. 
 
Counties with a population over 600,000:  All cities (except those under 50,000 in the coastal zone)  

 Equitable Community Incentive to a jobs-rich or transit-rich housing project: 
o Waiver of maximum controls on density. 
o 0.5 parking spots per unit. 
o Within 1/2 mile of a major transit stop – height up to 45 feet, Floor Area Ratio of 2.5, 

and no parking requirements. 
o Within 1/4 mile of a major transit stop – height up to 55 feet , Floor Area Ration of 3.25, 

and no parking requirements. 

 Mandatory inclusionary housing requirements apply. 

 Existing Density Bonus Law may be applied to the project. 
 
 
 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 
 
 
 
 

 

Newport Beach | San Jose | San Francisco | Riverside 
Dallas | Houston | Raleigh | Tampa 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

Public Finance 
Public-Private Partnerships 

Development Economics 
Clean Energy Bonds 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 66001, 66006, AND 
66013 ANNUAL AND FIVE-
YEAR REPORTS  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 
THROUGH 2018-2019 
CITY OF BRAWLEY 

JANUARY 21, 2020 

 

88



 
 

  

www.FinanceDTA.com 
5000 Birch Street, Suite 6000 
Newport Beach, CA 92660  

CITY OF BRAWLEY 

 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 66001, 66006, AND 66013 

ANNUAL AND FIVE-YEAR REPORTS 

FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 THROUGH 2018-2019 
Prepared for: 

City of Brawley 

400 Main Street 

Brawley, CA 92227  

 

89



 

 

 

TABLE 
OF CONTENTS 

 
 

SECTION 

I EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................... 1  

A Purpose of the Report ................................................. 1  

II FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 THROUGH 
2018-2019 ANNUAL REPORT ............................. 4  

A General Government Facilities ................................. 4  

B Library Facilities .......................................................... 5  

C Parks and Recreation Facilities ................................. 6  

D Police Facilities ............................................................ 8  

E Fire Facilities ................................................................ 9  

F Animal Control Facilities........................................... 11  

G Transportation Facilities .......................................... 12  

H Storm Water Facilities .............................................. 14  

I Water Capacity .......................................................... 15  

J Wastewater Capacity ................................................ 16  

III  FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 FIVE-YEAR REPORT 18  

 
  

90



 

 

 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A  GENERAL GOVERNMENT FACILITIES 
FEE FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX B  LIBRARY FACILITIES FEE FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX C  PARKS AND RECREATION 
FACILITIES FEE FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX D  POLICE FACILITIES FEE FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX E  FIRE FACILITIES FEE FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX F  ANIMAL CONTROL FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX G  TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX H  STORM WATER FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX I  WATER CAPACITY CHARGE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX J  WASTEWATER CAPACITY CHARGE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT  

APPENDIX K  SUMMARY OF INCOMPLETE 
PROJECTS 

91



1 

 SECTION I  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

I EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A Purpose of the Report 

Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 of the Government Code provide that the City of Brawley 
("City") shall make available to the public certain information and adopt described findings 
relative to development impact fees ("Impact Fees") and capacity charges (“Capacity 
Charges”) collected pursuant to Section 66000 et seq. of the Government Code. The 
described information and findings relate to Impact Fees and Capacity Charges received, 
expended or to be expended in connection with public facilities to accommodate new 
development. 

Section 66006(b) of the Government Code requires that for each Impact Fee the City shall, 
within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year, make available to the public the 
following information for the fiscal year: 

 A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund; 

 The amount of the fee; 

 The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund; 

 The amount of the fees collected and interest earned; 

 An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the 
amount of expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage of the 
cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees; 

 An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds 
have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement; 

 A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, 
including the public improvement on which the transferred or loaned fees will be 
expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on which the loan will be 
repaid and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan; and 

 The amount of refunds made due to sufficient funds being collected to complete 
financing on incomplete public improvements and volume of reallocation of funds 
made due to administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceeding the 
amount to be refunded. 

Section 66013(d) of the Government Code requires that for each Capacity Charge the City 
shall, within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year, make available to the public the 
following information for the fiscal year: 

 A description of the charges deposited in the fund. 

92



2 

 SECTION I  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

 The beginning and ending balance of the fund and the interest earned from 
investment of moneys in the fund. 

 The amount of charges collected in that fiscal year. 

 An identification of all of the following: 

 Each public improvement on which charges were expended and the amount 
of the expenditure for each improvement, including the percentage of the 
total cost of the public improvement that was funded with those charges if 
more than one source of funding was used; 

 Each public improvement on which charges were expended that was 
completed during that fiscal year; and 

 Each public improvement that is anticipated to be undertaken in the following 
fiscal year. 

 A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the capital facilities fund. 
The information provided, in the case of an interfund transfer, shall identify the 
public improvements on which the transferred moneys are, or will be, expended. The 
information, in the case of an interfund loan, shall include the date on which the loan 
will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the fund will receive on the loan. 

Section 66001(d) of the Government Code requires that for each Impact Fee, the City shall 
make all of the following findings every fifth year with respect to that portion of the account 
remaining unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted: 

 Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put; 

 Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and purpose for which it is 
charged; 

 Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in 
incomplete improvements; and 

 Designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected to be deposited 
into the appropriate account or fund. 

The Impact Fees of the City for fiscal year 2018-2019 fund the following types of facilities: 

1. General Government Facilities; 

2. Library Facilities; 

3. Parks and Recreation Facilities; 

4. Police Facilities; 

5. Fire Facilities; 

6. Animal Control Facilities; 

93



3 

 SECTION I  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

7. Transportation Facilities; and 

8. Storm Water Facilities. 

The Capacity Charges of the City for fiscal year 2018-2019 fund the following types of 
facilities: 

1. Water Capacity; and 

2. Wastewater Capacity. 

Both the Impact Fees and Capacity Charges were originally adopted by Ordinance No. 90-06 
on April 16, 1990 (the “Ordinance”). The dollar amounts of the fees are adopted by 
resolution. The Impact Fees were last updated by Resolution No. 2011-08 on February 22, 
2011. The Capacity Charges were adopted by Resolution No. 2011-07 on February 22, 2011. 

The following Annual Report for fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 and Five-Year 
Report for fiscal year 2018-2019 include the information and proposed findings the City 
intends to review and adopt in accordance with Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 of the 
Government Code. 

 

94



4 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

II FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 THROUGH 2018-2019 ANNUAL REPORT 

A General Government Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The General Government Services Facilities includes those facilities used by the 
City to provide basic governmental services and public facilities maintenance 
services, exclusive of public safety. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-1: General Government Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $180.18 per unit 
Multi-Family $135.30 per unit 
Commercial $189.09 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial $48.51 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix A list the beginning and ending balances for the 
General Government Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through 
fiscal year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix A is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix A show the amount of General Government 
Facilities Fee collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix A is a summary of all 
fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

No projects were funded by the General Government Facilities Fees in fiscal years 
2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete general government facilities projects and their 
approximate commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has 
determined that it has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

95



5 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the General Government Facilities Fee 
Account in fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the General Government Facilities Fee Account in 
fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

B Library Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Library Facilities will serve the residents of Brawley by promoting literacy and 
learning, as well as, providing an improved quality of life. The Library Facilities fee 
finances the expansion of existing library facilities and the acquisition of new 
library volumes. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-2: Library Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $281.82 per unit 
Multi-Family  $211.53 per unit 
Commercial  N/A 

Industrial  N/A 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix B list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Library Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal year 2018-
2019. Table 4 in Appendix B is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix B show the amount of Library Facilities Fees 
collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix B is a summary of all fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 

96



6 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

Table II-3: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Library Facilities Fee Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Books and Subscriptions $24,111 100% 

Total $24,111 N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete library facilities projects and their approximate 
commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has determined that it 
has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Library Facilities Fee Account in fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Library Facilities Fee Account in fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. 

C Parks and Recreation Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Parks and Recreation Facilities will serve the residents of Brawley by providing 
facilities for recreation while enhancing the community’s appeal and quality of 
life. The Parks and Recreation Facilities fee finances the acquisition of new park 
facilities to serve new residential development through build out. 

97



7 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-4: Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 
Single Family $1,096.26 per unit 
Multi-Family  $822.03 per unit 
Commercial  N/A 

Industrial  N/A 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix C list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through 
fiscal year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix C is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix C show the amount of Parks and Recreation 
Facilities Fees collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix C is a summary of all 
fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

Table II-5: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee 
Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Purchase of Park Bleachers $126,301 100% 
Purchase of Three (3) Riding Lawnmowers  $61,902 100% 

Meserve Park Restrooms $14,116 100% 

Total $202,319 N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete parks and recreation facilities projects and their 
approximate commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has 
determined that it has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

98



8 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee 
Account in fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee Account in 
fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

D Police Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Police Facilities includes those facilities used by the City. In order to serve new 
development through build out, the City identified the need for one additional 
police station, one police substation, police vehicles, communication center and 
equipment, and police equipment. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-6: Police Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $239.25 per unit 
Multi-Family  $179.52 per unit 
Commercial  $251.13 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial  $64.35 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix D list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Police Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal year 2018-
2019. Table 4 in Appendix D is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix D show the amount of Policies Facilities Fees 
collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix D is a summary of all fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 

99



9 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

Table II-7: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Police Facilities Fee Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Evidence and Property Room Renovation $7,757 5% 

Total $7,757 N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete police facilities projects and their approximate 
commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has determined that it 
has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Police Facilities Fee Account in fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Police Facilities Fee Account in fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019.  

E Fire Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Fire Facilities includes those facilities used by the City to protect life and 
property. The City identifies the need for additional fire protection facilities, 
equipment, and fire fighters as build out of the community occurs. In order to 
serve new development through build out in Brawley, the City identified the need 
for one new fire station, one new fire substation, and fire vehicles. 

  

100



10 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-8: Fire Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $224.40 per unit 

Multi-Family  $168.30 per unit 
Commercial  $235.29 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial  $60.39 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix E list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Fire Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal year 2018-
2019. Table 4 in Appendix E is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix E show the amount of Fire Facilities Fees collected, 
interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 2016-2017 through 
2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix E is a summary of all fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

Table II-9: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Fire Facilities Fee Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Purchase of Utility Pick-Up/Command Vehicle $54,644 100% 

Total $54,644  N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete fire facilities projects and their approximate 
commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has determined that it 
has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-

101



11 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Fire Facilities Fee Account in fiscal years 
2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Fire Facilities Fee Account in fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019.  

F Animal Control Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Animal Control Facilities includes those facilities used by the City to provide 
basic animal control services. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-10: Animal Control Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $10.89 per unit 
Multi-Family  $8.25 per unit 
Commercial  $11.55 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial  $2.97 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix F list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Animal Control Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal 
year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix F is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix F show the amount of Animal Control Facilities 
Fees collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 
2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix F is a summary of all fiscal 
years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

102



12 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

Table II-11: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Animal Control Facilities Fee 
Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Animal Control Vehicle Acquisition $7,221 27% 

Total $7,221 N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete animal control facilities projects and their 
approximate commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has 
determined that it has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan.. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Animal Control Facilities Fee Account 
in fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Animal Control Facilities Fee Account in fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

G Transportation Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

Transportation Facilities includes infrastructure necessary to provide safe and 
efficient vehicular access throughout the City. In order to meet the transportation 
demand of new development through build out, the City identified the need for 
new road construction and equipment. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

103



13 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

Table II-12: Transportation Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $1,836.45 per unit 

Multi-Family  $1,285.68 per unit 
Commercial  $5,642.34 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial  $938.19 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix G list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Transportation Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal 
year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix G is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees collected and interest earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix G show the amount of Transportation Facilities 
Fees collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 
2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix G is a summary of all fiscal 
years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

Table II-13: Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019 Transportation Facilities Fee 
Expenditures 

Project Amount 
Percentage of 

Project Funded 
by Fees 

Wildcat Drive Right of Way Acquisition $21,950 1% 

Total $21,950 N/A 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete transportation facilities projects and their 
approximate commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has 
determined that it has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 

104



14 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Transportation Facilities Fee Account 
in fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Transportation Facilities Fee Account in fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

H Storm Water Facilities 

1. Description of the type of Impact Fees in the account or sub-account(s) of the City. 

The Storm Water Facilities include facilities necessary to ensure proper collection 
of storm water throughout the City. In order to meet the necessary protection 
levels from storm water runoff generated by new development through build out, 
the City identified the need for certain storm water facilities. 

2. Amount of the Impact Fees. 

Table II-14: Storm Water Facilities Fee by Land Use 

Land Use Fee Amount 

Single Family $93.39 per unit 
Multi-Family  $47.52 per unit 
Commercial  $66.99 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

Industrial  $53.13 per 1,000 bldg. sq. ft. 

3. Beginning and ending balance of account and sub-account(s). 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix H list the beginning and ending balances for the 
Storm Water Facilities Fee Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 through fiscal year 
2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix H is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. Amount of the Impact Fees Collected and Interest Earned. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix H show the amount of Storm Water Facilities Fees 
collected, interest earned, and miscellaneous income during fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix H is a summary of all fiscal years. 

5. Identification of each improvement on which Impact Fees were expended and the 
amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of each project of the City that was funded with Impact Fees. 

No projects were funded by the Storm Water Facilities Fees in fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. 

105



15 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

6. Identification of an approximate date by which the construction of project(s) of 
the City will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete project of the City, as identified 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (A) of Section 66001, and the project of the City 
remains incomplete. 

The City’s currently incomplete storm water facilities projects and their 
approximate commencement dates are shown in Appendix K. The City has 
determined that it has or will obtain sufficient funds to finance such projects. 

7. Description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Impact Fees will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date on 
which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Storm Water Facilities Fee Account in 
fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019.  

8. The amount of refunds made or revenues allocated for other purposes if the 
administrative costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceed the amount to be 
refunded. 

No refunds were made from the Storm Water Facilities Fee Account in fiscal years 
2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

I Water Capacity 

1. A description of the Capacity Charges deposited in the fund. 

The purpose of the Water Capacity Charge is to mitigate the impact of a growth 
in customers (i.e., new service connections) to the City’s existing public water 
system. The charge is directly related to the need for expanded water service 
capacity caused by development. 

2. The beginning and ending balance of the fund and the interest earned from 
investment of moneys in the fund. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix I list the beginning and ending balances for, and 
interest earned in, the Water Capacity Charge Account from fiscal year 2016-2017 
through fiscal year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix I is a summary of all fiscal 
years. 

3. Amount of Capacity Charges collected in that fiscal year. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix I show the amount of Water Capacity Charges 
collected during fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix I 
is a summary of all fiscal years. 

106



16 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

4. An identification of all of the following: 

 Each public improvement on which Capacity Charges were expended and 
the amount of the expenditure for each improvement, including the 
percentage of the total cost of the public improvement that was funded 
with those charges if more than one source of funding was used; 

 Each public improvement on which Capacity Charges were expended that 
was completed during that fiscal year; and 

 Each public improvement that is anticipated to be undertaken in the 
following fiscal year. 

No projects were funded by the Water Capacity Charges in fiscal years 2016-2017 
through 2018-2019. No projects are anticipated to be funded by the Water 
Capacity Charges in fiscal year 2019-2020. 

5. A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Capacity Charges will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date 
on which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Water Capacity Charge Account in fiscal 
years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

J Wastewater Capacity 

1. A description of the Capacity Charges deposited in the fund. 

The purpose of the Wastewater Capacity Charge is to mitigate the impact of a 
growth in customers (i.e., new service connections) to the City’s existing public 
wastewater system. The charge is directly related to the need for expanded 
wastewater service capacity caused by development. 

2. The beginning and ending balance of the fund and the interest earned from 
investment of moneys in the fund. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix J list the beginning and ending balances for, and 
interest earned in, the Wastewater Capacity Charge Account from fiscal year 
2016-2017 through fiscal year 2018-2019. Table 4 in Appendix J is a summary of 
all fiscal years. 

3. Amount of Capacity Charges collected in that fiscal year. 

Tables 1 through 3 in Appendix J show the amount of Wastewater Capacity 
Charges collected during fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. Table 4 in 
Appendix J is a summary of all fiscal years. 

4. An identification of all of the following: 

107



17 

 SECTION II  
FISCAL YEARS 2016-2017 

THROUGH 2018-2019 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

 Each public improvement on which Capacity Charges were expended and 
the amount of the expenditure for each improvement, including the 
percentage of the total cost of the public improvement that was funded 
with those charges if more than one source of funding was used; 

 Each public improvement on which Capacity Charges were expended that 
was completed during that fiscal year; and 

 Each public improvement that is anticipated to be undertaken in the 
following fiscal year. 

No projects were funded by the Wastewater Capacity Charges in fiscal years 2016-
2017 through 2018-2019. No projects are anticipated to be funded by the 
Wastewater Capacity Charges in fiscal year 2019-2020. 

5. A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or sub-
account(s), including project(s) of the City on which the transferred or loaned 
Capacity Charges will be expended, and, in the case of an interfund loan, the date 
on which the loan will be repaid, and the rate of Interest that the account or sub-
account(s) will receive on the loan. 

No transfers or loans were made from the Wastewater Capacity Charge Account 
in fiscal years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019. 

 

108



18 

  SECTION III 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

FIVE-YEAR REPORT  
 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

III FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 FIVE-YEAR REPORT 

In accordance with Government Code Section 66001, the City provides the following 
information with respect to that portion of the Impact Fee accounts or sub-account(s) 
remaining unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted: 

 Identification of the purpose to which the Impact Fees are to be put 

The purpose of the Impact Fees imposed and collected on new development within 
the City during fiscal year 2018-2019 was to fund the additional public facilities 
needed to serve new development within the City. 

 Demonstration of a reasonable relationship between the Impact Fees and the 
purposes for which they are charged 

There is a roughly proportional, reasonable relationship between the new 
development upon which the Impact Fees are charged and the need for additional 
public facilities by reason of the fact that additional residents and employees will be 
generated by additional development within the City and the City does not have 
capacity in its existing public facilities to accommodate these new residents and 
employees. Furthermore, the Impact Fees charged on new development will be used 
to fund additional public facilities which will be used to serve the residents and 
employees generated from new development. 

 Identification of all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete 
financing of the public facilities the City has identified in the City's reports 

Table III-1 below is a summary of the amount of fees on hand for each fund as of 
June 30, 2019, as well as the costs of the pending public facility projects currently 
identified by the City as shown in further detail in Appendix K. As indicated in the 
table below, the current fee balances are needed to complete the pending projects. 

Table III-1: Fees on Hand for Each Fund as of June 30, 2019 

Fund 
Fees On Hand 

as of 6/30/2019  
Cost of Future 

Projects  

General Government Facilities $112,025 $1,140,000 
Library Facilities  $122,109 $4,278,335 

Parks and Recreation Facilities  $179,225 $300,000 
Police Facilities  $132,672 $622,500 

Fire Facilities  $26,481 $8,271,000 
Animal Control Facilities  $2,327 $1,000,000 

Transportation Facilities $1,545,062 $12,620,000 
Storm Water Facilities $37,107 $250,000 

  

109



19 

  SECTION III 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

FIVE-YEAR REPORT  
 

 

 
City of Brawley January 21, 2020 
AB 1600 Annual and Five-Year Reports 

 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

 Identification of the approximate dates on which the funding referred to in Table III-
1 is expected to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund. 

Appendix K shows the approximate dates on which the funds are expected to be 
available for the Public Facility projects presently identified by the City. 

 

110



 

 

APPENDIX A 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL 
GOVERNMENT 
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

111



DTA APPENDIX A 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
General Government Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $65,651

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $12,457
Interest Income $797

Total Sources of Funds $13,254

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $78,905

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $78,905

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $5,349
Interest Income $318

Total Sources of Funds $5,666

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $84,571

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $84,571

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $26,105
Interest Income $1,348

Total Sources of Funds $27,453

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $112,025

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $65,651

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $43,911
Interest Income $2,463

Total Sources of Funds $46,374

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $112,025

Page A-1 112



 

 

APPENDIX B 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY  
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

113



DTA APPENDIX B 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Library Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $85,345

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $16,627
Interest Income ($1,708) [1]

Total Sources of Funds $14,920

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($2,507)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($2,507)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $97,757

[1] Negative interest due to adjustments made by the City to interest earnings in prior years.

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $97,757

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $7,046
Interest Income $5,585

Total Sources of Funds $12,630

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($9,299)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($9,299)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $101,088

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $101,088

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $31,862
Interest Income $1,463

Total Sources of Funds $33,325

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($12,304)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($12,304)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $122,109

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $85,345

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $55,535
Interest Income $5,340

Total Sources of Funds $60,875

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($24,111)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($24,111)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $122,109

Page B-1 114



 

 

APPENDIX C 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

PARKS AND 
RECREATION 
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

115



DTA APPENDIX C 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Parks and Recreation Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $161,231

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $64,679
Interest Income $746

Total Sources of Funds $65,425

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($14,103)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($14,103)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $212,553

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $212,553

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $27,407
Interest Income $821

Total Sources of Funds $28,228

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($13)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($13)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $240,768

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $240,768

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $123,861
Interest Income $2,800

Total Sources of Funds $126,661

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($188,203)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($188,203)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $179,225

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $161,231

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $215,947
Interest Income $4,367

Total Sources of Funds $220,314

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($202,319)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($202,319)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $179,225

Page C-1 116



 

 

APPENDIX D 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

POLICE  
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

117



DTA APPENDIX D 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Police Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $81,268

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $16,541
Interest Income $956

Total Sources of Funds $17,497

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($7,757)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($7,757)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $91,008

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $91,008

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $7,101
Interest Income $396

Total Sources of Funds $7,497

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $98,505

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $98,505

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $32,595
Interest Income $1,572

Total Sources of Funds $34,167

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $132,672

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $81,268

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $56,237
Interest Income $2,924

Total Sources of Funds $59,162

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($7,757)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($7,757)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $132,672

Page D-1 118



 

 

APPENDIX E 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

FIRE  
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

119



DTA APPENDIX E 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Fire Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $26,958

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $15,513
Interest Income $382

Total Sources of Funds $15,895

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $42,853

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $42,853

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $6,661
Interest Income $166

Total Sources of Funds $6,827

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $49,680

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $49,680

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $30,559
Interest Income $887

Total Sources of Funds $31,445

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($54,644)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($54,644)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $26,481

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $26,958

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $52,732
Interest Income $1,434

Total Sources of Funds $54,167

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($54,644)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($54,644)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $26,481

Page E-1 120



 

 

APPENDIX F 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

ANIMAL CONTROL 
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

121



DTA APPENDIX F 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Animal Control Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $6,281

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $754
Interest Income $68

Total Sources of Funds $822

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $7,103

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $7,103

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $324
Interest Income $29

Total Sources of Funds $353

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $7,456

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $7,456

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $2,010
Interest Income $82

Total Sources of Funds $2,092

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($7,221)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($7,221)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $2,327

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $6,281

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $3,088
Interest Income $179

Total Sources of Funds $3,267

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($7,221)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($7,221)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $2,327

Page F-1 122



 

 

APPENDIX G 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

TRANSPORTATION 
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

123



DTA APPENDIX G 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Transportation Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $910,573

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $221,437
Interest Income $11,312

Total Sources of Funds $232,749

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $1,143,322

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $1,143,322

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $62,236
Interest Income $4,651

Total Sources of Funds $66,887

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $1,210,208

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $1,210,208

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $337,571
Interest Income $19,232

Total Sources of Funds $356,804

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($21,950)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($21,950)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,545,062

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $910,573

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $621,244
Interest Income $35,195

Total Sources of Funds $656,439

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects ($21,950)
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds ($21,950)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,545,062

Page G-1 124



 

 

APPENDIX H 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

STORM WATER 
FACILITIES FEE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

125



DTA APPENDIX H 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66006
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Storm Water Facilities Fee Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $16,698

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $6,409
Interest Income $269

Total Sources of Funds $6,678

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $23,376

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $23,376

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $3,482
Interest Income ($130) [1]

Total Sources of Funds $3,352

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $26,728

[1] Negative interest due to adjustments made by the City to interest earnings in prior years.

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $26,728

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $9,943
Interest Income $436

Total Sources of Funds $10,379

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $37,107

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $16,698

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $19,834
Interest Income $575

Total Sources of Funds $20,409

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $37,107

Page H-1 126



 

 

APPENDIX I 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

WATER  
CAPACITY CHARGE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

127



DTA APPENDIX I 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66013
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Water Capacity Charge Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $759,908

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $269,942
Interest Income $3,327

Total Sources of Funds $273,269

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $1,033,177

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $1,033,177

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $92,273
Interest Income ($12,593) [1]

Total Sources of Funds $79,680

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $1,112,857

[1] Negative interest due to adjustments made by the City to interest earnings in prior years.

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $1,112,857

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $498,732
Interest Income $0

Total Sources of Funds $498,732

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,611,589

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $759,908

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $860,947
Interest Income ($9,266)

Total Sources of Funds $851,681

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,611,589

Page I-1 128



 

 

APPENDIX J 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

WASTEWATER 
CAPACITY CHARGE 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
REPORT 

  

129



DTA APPENDIX J 12/27/2019

City of Brawley
Government Code Section 66013
Annual Report
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019
Wastewater Capacity Charge Financial Summary Report

Table 1 : Fiscal Year 2016-2017

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $745,643

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $241,782
Interest Income $3,190

Total Sources of Funds $244,972

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2017 $990,615

Table 2 : Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2017 $990,615

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $89,285
Interest Income ($12,090) [1]

Total Sources of Funds $77,195

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2018 $1,067,810

[1] Negative interest due to adjustments made by the City to interest earnings in prior years.

Table 3 : Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2018 $1,067,810

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $482,645
Interest Income $0

Total Sources of Funds $482,645

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,550,455

Table 4 : Summary Fiscal Years 2016-2017 through 2018-2019

Account Description Amount

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2016 $745,643

Sources of Funds
Fee Revenues $813,712
Interest Income ($8,900)

Total Sources of Funds $804,812

Uses of Funds
Capital Improvement Projects $0
Refund of Fees $0

Total Uses of Funds $0

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/2019 $1,550,455

Page J-1 130



 

 

APPENDIX K 
City of Brawley 
Government Code Sections 66001, 66006, and 66013 Annual and Five-Year Reports 
Fiscal Years 2016-2017 Through 2018-2019 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF 
INCOMPLETE 
PROJECTS 

 

131



D
T

A
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 K
1/

17
/2

02
0

C
it

y 
o

f 
B

ra
w

le
y

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
Se

ct
io

n
s 

66
0

0
1 

an
d

 6
60

0
6

A
n

n
u

al
 a

n
d

 F
iv

e-
Y

ea
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
2

0
18

-2
0

19
Su

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

In
co

m
p

le
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s

P
ro

je
ct

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

st

A
m

o
u

n
t 

to
 b

e 
Fu

n
d

ed
 b

y 
R

ep
o

rt
ab

le
 F

ee
s/

C
ap

ac
it

y 
Fe

es
So

u
rc

e 
o

f 
R

ep
o

rt
ab

le
 

Fe
es

/C
ap

ac
it

y 
Fe

es

A
m

o
u

n
t 

to
 b

e
Fu

n
d

ed
 b

y
O

th
er

 S
o

u
rc

es
 o

f 
Fu

n
d

s
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
th

er
 S

o
u

rc
es

 o
f 

Fu
n

d
s

T
im

ef
ra

m
e

G
en

er
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
Fa

ci
li

ti
es

C
it

y 
H

al
l C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

Sy
st

em
$6

0,
00

0
$2

0,
48

4
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$3
9,

51
6

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

T
B

D
U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
.W

. F
ib

er
 O

p
ti

cs
$2

0,
00

0
$6

,8
28

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$1

3,
17

2
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
T

B
D

V
eh

ic
le

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 S

h
o

p
 C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
$1

0,
00

0
$3

,4
14

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

,5
86

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

T
B

D
Sh

o
p

 R
es

tr
o

o
m

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

$1
5,

00
0

$5
,1

21
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$9
,8

79
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
T

B
D

En
gi

n
ee

ri
n

g 
V

eh
ic

le
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

$2
5,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$0

N
A

T
B

D
Pu

bl
ic

 W
o

rk
s 

P
ar

ki
n

g 
Lo

t 
Pa

vi
n

g
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$3
41

,4
00

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

58
,6

00
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 F
u

n
d

T
B

D
Pl

an
n

in
g 

IT
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
$1

0,
00

0
$3

,4
14

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

,5
86

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

T
B

D
Su

bt
o

ta
l

$1
,1

4
0

,0
0

0
$4

0
5,

66
1

$7
34

,3
39

Li
br

ar
y 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
Li

br
ar

y 
B

o
o

ks
$4

,1
53

,3
35

$4
,1

53
,3

35
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
A

n
n

u
al

ly
Li

br
ar

y 
R

es
tr

o
o

m
 R

ec
o

n
fig

u
ra

ti
o

n
 (M

o
d

er
n

iz
e/

U
p

gr
ad

e)
$1

25
,0

00
$4

2,
67

5
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$8
2,

32
5

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 F

u
n

d/
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
Su

bt
o

ta
l

$4
,2

78
,3

35
$4

,1
96

,0
10

$8
2,

32
5

P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
Pa

t 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

Pa
rk

 S
h

el
te

r 
Pr

o
je

ct
$1

00
,0

00
$1

00
,0

00
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
T

B
D

Pa
rk

 P
la

y 
Eq

u
ip

m
en

t
$2

00
,0

00
$2

00
,0

00
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
T

B
D

Su
bt

o
ta

l
$3

0
0

,0
0

0
$3

0
0

,0
0

0
$0

P
o

lic
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

C
en

te
r 

W
o

rk
in

g 
C

o
n

so
le

$1
06

,0
00

$3
6,

18
8

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

9,
81

2
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

C
en

te
r 

R
ad

io
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
Sy

st
em

 H
ar

d
w

ar
e

$1
00

,0
00

$3
4,

14
0

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

5,
86

0
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
Po

rt
ab

le
 O

ff
ic

er
 R

ad
io

s
$6

6,
50

0
$6

6,
50

0
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
A

n
ti

-C
ri

m
e 

C
am

er
a 

Su
rv

ei
lla

n
ce

 S
ys

te
m

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
an

d
 In

st
al

la
ti

o
n

$2
00

,0
00

$6
8,

28
0

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$1

31
,7

20
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
Ev

id
en

ce
 a

n
d

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 R

o
o

m
 R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

$1
50

,0
00

$5
1,

21
0

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$9

8,
79

0
A

ss
et

 F
o

rf
ei

tu
re

 a
n

d
/o

r 
O

th
er

 S
o

u
rc

es
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

Id
en

ti
fie

d
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
Su

bt
o

ta
l

$6
22

,5
0

0
$2

56
,3

18
$3

66
,1

8
2

Fi
re

 F
ac

il
it

ie
s

M
ai

n
 F

ir
e 

St
at

io
n

 (U
p

gr
ad

e)
$8

,2
71

,0
00

$2
,8

23
,7

19
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$5
,4

47
,2

81
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d 
(C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s)

FY
 2

01
9/

20
20

 (P
ar

ti
al

)

A
n

im
al

 C
o

n
tr

o
l F

ac
ili

ti
es

A
n

im
al

 H
o

ld
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$3
41

,4
00

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$6

58
,6

00
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d/
G

ra
n

t 
(I

f A
va

ila
bl

e)
T

B
D

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
ro

je
ct

$1
,0

00
,0

00
$2

32
,1

00
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$7
67

,9
00

H
ig

h
w

ay
 R

el
in

qu
is

h
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
s

T
B

D
W

ild
ca

t 
D

ri
ve

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 (S

ta
te

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 8

6 
to

 S
. B

es
t 

A
ve

n
u

e)
$1

1,
62

0,
00

0
$1

1,
62

0,
00

0
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
FY

 2
01

9/
20

20
Su

bt
o

ta
l

$1
2,

62
0

,0
0

0
$1

1,
8

52
,1

0
0

$7
67

,9
0

0

St
o

rm
 W

at
er

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
N

. I
m

pe
ri

al
 A

ve
n

u
e 

St
o

rm
 D

ra
in

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

$2
50

,0
00

$2
50

,0
00

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$0

N
A

T
B

D

W
at

er
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Po
n

d 
Li

n
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
$2

,0
00

,0
00

$7
50

,0
00

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$1

,2
50

,0
00

W
at

er
 F

u
n

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

h
ar

g
es

T
B

D

W
as

te
w

at
er

 C
ap

ac
it

y 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Sa
n

it
ar

y 
Se

w
er

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

$5
0,

00
0

$1
5,

70
0

O
n

 D
ep

o
si

t/
Fu

tu
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
$3

4,
30

0
W

as
te

w
at

er
 E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 F

u
n

d
T

B
D

G
re

en
h

o
u

se
 E

xp
an

si
o

n
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$1
,0

00
,0

00
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
T

B
D

Se
co

n
d 

C
en

tr
if

u
g

e
$8

00
,0

00
$8

00
,0

00
O

n
 D

ep
o

si
t/

Fu
tu

re
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s

$0
N

A
T

B
D

Su
bt

o
ta

l
$1

,8
50

,0
0

0
$1

,8
15

,7
0

0
$3

4
,3

0
0

Pa
ge

 K
-1

132



 

 

 
 
 
 

5000 BIRCH STREET, SUITE 6000 

NEWPORT BEACH, CA 92660 

PHONE: (800) 969-4DTA 

Public Finance 
Public-Private Partnerships 

Development Economics 
Clean Energy Bonds 

www.FinanceDTA.com 

133




